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CHICAGO O’HARE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT (“ORD”) 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFPS) 

 TO PROVIDE A  “AIRPORT NETWORK MEDIA PROGRAMMING” 
 IN TERMINALS 1, 2, 3 AND 5  

RFP Issuance Date:  January 7, 2022 
 
Addendum #3 
March 24, 2022 
 
The following changes and revisions are incorporated into the Request for Proposal 
to provide Airport Network Media Programming (“RFP”) issued by the City of 
Chicago’s Department of Aviation (“CDA”) on January 7, 2022. All other provisions 
and requirements as originally set forth in the RFP remain in full force and effect, 
unless amended by previous addenda. 
 

RESPONDENT MUST ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THE ADDENDUM IN THE COVER 
LETTER SUBMITTED WITH ITS PROPOSAL 

 

The Proposal Due Date has been modified from April 1, 2022 to April 29, 2022, at 
4:00 P.M. Central Time.  

 

Additional Questions and Responses: 
 
Question 51:  Please provide the telephone number (of the contact person at the 
CDA to whom the proposal is being sent) that should be placed on the overnight 
courier label for the proposals. This information is required by the courier company 
should the need arise to call the recipient during transit. Please confirm if the CDA 
will accept hand-delivered responses. If so, please provide an address and telephone 
number for the hand delivery. 
Answer:  The delivery address is as stated in the RFP and may be delivered by any 
means as long as the submittal is received by the Due Date, as amended. The 
contact phone number of Chicago Department of Aviation’s reception desk is (773) 
686-3726.   
 
Question 52:  Please advise on when the Sample License Agreement will be made 
available in the RFP Data Room.  
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Answer:  The Sample Agreement will be posted in the data room prior to the due 
date. 
 
Question:  To ensure equity and fairness across all revenue share Eligible Airports, a 
Revenue Pool has been in place where all Eligible Airports are on par with similarly 
tiered airports. This formula has been in practice by an airport network media 
programming service for thirty years. The Respondent reserves 15% of the gross 
advertising revenue, minus agency commission (derived from national advertising) 
and places it in a Service Revenue Pool. Revenues are distributed to all Eligible 
Airports receiving the Respondent’s programming service on a pro rata basis. 
Chicago O’Hare airport’s share of the Revenue Pool will be a portion derived from 
calculating the percentage based on the size of the measured viewing audience as 
compared to the total measured viewing audience of the programming service at all 
Eligible Airports. Will continuation of this formula be acceptable to the CDA and will 
it be deemed as an “other accepted fee structure proposed by Respondent” per the 
RFP? 
Answer:  Respondents must comply with the fee structure in the RFP and may 
propose alternative fee structures for the City to consider in the Exceptions 
Section. 
 
Question 53:  As an ACDBE participation goal is required, would it be acceptable to 
the CDA for the ACDBE participation be based upon 32% of the total operating 
expenses incurred in the annual execution of the contract? As the Respondent’s 
revenue is generated from national advertising sales, this approach will mirror the 
measurement of our ACDBE participation at our other airports where a participation 
goal is required. 
Answer:  The ACDBE goal participation must adhere to FAA rules, regulations, and 
guidelines. Please see the Special Conditions document included in the data room 
which outlines the requirements to achieve ACDBE participation.   
 
Question 54:  Page 28 refers to Section 3 as “Methods of Management and 
Operations” whereas Page 29 refers to the same Section as “Management and 
Operating Plan.” Please provide the correct title for this section. 
Answer: “Methods of Management and Operations” and “Management and 
Operations Plan” have the same meaning and effect and may be used 
interchangeably.  
 
Question: As a US subsidiary of a UK company, the Respondent is unable to provide 
the specific financial statements that the CDA has requested. However, links to the 
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UK parent company's audited financial statements can be provided. If links are 
acceptable, they will accurately demonstrate the Respondent’s financial capability 
and stability to perform the work sought by this Request For Proposal. Will this be 
acceptable to the CDA? 
Answer: Actual financial statements as required in the RFP, not links, must be 
included in the hard copy version and digitally on the USB flash drive version of the 
submission.  
 
Question 55:  The Respondent is currently managing and maintaining airport 
network media programming services in more than 90 airports. To include the 
information requested on Proposal Form A of the RFP will require several pages. Will 
it be acceptable to the CDA if we submit information for ten (10) airports where we 
have maintained airport network media programming services during the previous 
six (6) years? 
Answer Within the page limitations as set forth in the RFP, the Respondent at its 
discretion should  include examples of existing operations that best convey 
Respondent’s relevant experience.  
 
Question 56:  Proposal Form N (Proposal Checklist) calls Proposal Form B “Concept 
Plan” but it is referred to as “Program/System Plan” on Page 2 of the RFP. Please 
confirm the correct title of the form. 
Answer: The “Concept Plan” and “Program/System Plan” have the same meaning 
and effect and may be used interchangeably. 
 
Question 57:  There is a blank space on Proposal Form C that is preceded by the 
words “Proposed Packages.” Please confirm if the information that should be 
inserted on the blank space is “Airport Network Media Programming in Terminals 1, 
2, 3 and 5.” If this is incorrect, please provide the correct information. 
Answer: Confirmed that the information to be inserted on the blank space on 
Proposal Form C preceded by the words “Proposal Packages” is “Airport Network 
Media Programming in Terminals 1, 2, 3 and 5”. 
 
Question 58:  There is a blank space on Proposal Form D that is preceded by the 
word “Proposed.” Please confirm if the information that should be inserted on the 
blank space is “Airport Network Media Programming in Terminals 1, 2, 3 and 5.” If 
this is incorrect, please provide the correct information. 
Answer: Confirmed that the information to be inserted on the blank space on 
Proposal Form D preceded by the word “Proposed” is “Airport Network Media 
Programming in Terminals 1, 2, 3 and 5”. 
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Question 59:  Page 1 of Proposal Form F: Schedule D has two blank spaces for 
“State” and “County.” Please confirm the information that should be inserted on 
each blank space: do they refer to the location of Chicago O’Hare International 
Airport? If so, please provide the County name. Or should the state and county in 
which the Tenant’s company is located be inserted on these blank spaces? 
Answer:  The form requires the state and county of the location in which the 
ACDBE entity is certified. 
 
Question 60:  Page 2 of Proposal Form F: Schedule D. In the section that’s below the 
designation of the ACDBE Liaison Officer, please confirm the name that should be 
entered in the section to be notarized: the Tenant’s name (and signature) or the 
ACDBE Liaison Officer’s name (and signature)? 
Answer:  The ACDBE Liaison Officer is the designated contact person of the ACDBE 
entity or entities that will be participating in the proposal.  


